
STANDARDS COMMITTEE

AGENDA

Date: Wednesday, 13th November, 
2019

Time: 7.00 pm

Venue: Guildhall



2

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

Information for Members of the Public

Access to the Guildhall is via the front entrance in the High Street.  The nearest car park is 
Copenhagen Street (pay and display). If you are a wheelchair user or have restricted mobility, 
access to the Guildhall can be gained either through the door on the right side of the forecourt 
as you face the Guildhall, or through the sliding doors at the rear of the Guildhall.   There is 
dedicated disabled parking space at the rear (access via Copenhagen Street). Most meetings 
are held on the ground floor, which can be reached by using a lift.  If you are a wheelchair user 
or have restricted mobility and you wish to attend a meeting, please telephone or email the 
officer mentioned below in advance and we will make any necessary arrangements to assist 
your visit.

Part I of the Agenda includes items for discussion in public.  You have the right to inspect 
copies of Minutes and reports on this part of the Agenda as well as background documents 
used in the preparation of these reports. Details of the background papers appear at the foot of 
each report. Part II of the Agenda (if applicable) deals with items of 'Exempt Information' for 
which it is anticipated that the public may be excluded from the meeting and neither reports 
nor background papers are open to public inspection.

Please note that this is a public meeting and members of the public and press are permitted to 
report on the proceedings. "Reporting" includes filming, photographing, making an audio 
recording and providing commentary on proceedings. Any communicative method can be used 
to report on the proceedings, including the internet, to publish, post or share the proceedings. 
Accordingly, the attendance of members of the public at this meeting may be recorded and 
broadcast. By choosing to attend this public meeting you are deemed to have given your 
consent to being filmed or recorded and for any footage to be broadcast or published.  

Please note the Council audio records and live streams many of its meetings. These recordings 
are published on the relevant meeting pages of the Council’s website. A notice to this effect will 
be posted in the meeting room. If a member of the public chooses to speak at a meeting of the 
City Council he/she will be deemed to have given their consent to being recorded and audio 
being published live to the Council’s website. The Chairman of the meeting, can at their 
discretion, terminate or suspend recording, if in their opinion, continuing to do so would 
prejudice the proceedings of the meeting or if they consider that continued recording might 
infringe the rights of any individual, or breach any statutory provision.

At the start of the meeting under the item 'Public Participation' up to fifteen minutes in total is 
allowed for members of the public to present a petition, ask a question or comment on any 
matter on the Agenda.  Participants need to indicate that they wish to speak by 4.30 
p.m. on the last working day before the meeting by writing, telephoning or E-Mailing 
the officer mentioned below.

If you have any queries about this Agenda or require any details of background papers, or to 
discuss arrangements for the taking of photographs, film, video or sound recording please 
contact Julian Pugh, Democratic Services Administrator, Democratic Services, 
Guildhall, Worcester WR1 2EY.  Telephone: 01905 722027 (direct line); E-Mail 
Address:  committeeadministration@worcester.gov.uk

This agenda can be made available in large print, braille, on PC disk, tape or in a number of 
ethnic minority languages.  Please contact the above named officer for further information.

Agendas and minutes relating to all City Council Committees and Council Meetings are also 
available electronically, click on the option “Committee Minutes and Documents”, Website 
Address: worcester.gov.uk



3

Standards Committee
Wednesday, 13 November 2019

Members of the Committee:-
Chairman: Councillor Matthew Lamb (L)

Vice-Chairman: Councillor Andrew Roberts (C)

Councillor Jenny Barnes (LCo)
Councillor Jo Hodges (L)
Mr Roger Knight (Co-opted)
Mr Richard Manser (Co-opted)
Mrs Dawn Merriman (Co-opted)

Councillor Chris Mitchell (C)
Mr Raymond Needham JP (Co-opted)
Councillor James Stanley (C)
Mr Alan Tidy (Co-opted)

C = Conservative G = Green L = Labour LCo = Labour and Co-Operative

AGENDA

Part 1
(ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION IN PUBLIC)

1. Appointment of Substitutes 

2. Declarations of Interest To receive any declarations of interest.

3. Public Participation Up to a total of fifteen minutes can be 
allowed, each speaker being allocated a 
maximum of five minutes, for members of 
the public to present a petition, ask a 
question, or comment on any matter on the 
Agenda or within the remit of the 
Committee.

4. Minutes 
Page(s): 1 - 4

Of the meeting held on 26th June 2019 to 
be approved and signed.

5. Local Government and Social 
Care Ombudsman Annual Review 
Letter 2019 
Page(s): 5 - 14
Ward(s): All Wards
Contact Officer: Joanna Payne, 

Transformation 
and Performance 
Officer
Tel: 01905 
722407

That the Standards Committee consider the 
Annual Review Letter (Appendix 1) of the 
Local Government and Social Care 
Ombudsman (LG&SCO) for the period 
covering 1st April 2018 to 31st March 2019 
for information and comment.

6. Complaints Made Under the 
Members' Code of Conduct 
Page(s): 15 - 16

That the report be noted.



4

Ward(s): All Wards
Contact Officer: Sian Stroud, 

Deputy Director - 
Governance
Tel: 01905 
722017

7. Response to the Nolan Review 
and Updated Pan-Worcestershire 
Code of Conduct for Members 
Page(s): 17 - 46
Ward(s): All Wards
Contact Officer: Sian Stroud, 

Deputy Director - 
Governance
Tel: 01905 
722017

That the Committee:

1.1 notes the recommendations of the 
report published by the National Committee 
on Standards in Public Life on ethical 
standards in local government, as set out in 
Appendix 1;

1.2 notes the discussions which have 
taken place between the Monitoring Officers 
of the principal authorities within 
Worcestershire in response to those 
recommendations;

1.3 endorses the principle of a pan-
Worcestershire Code of Conduct for 
members; 

1.4 endorses the draft Code of Conduct 
set out at Appendix 2 and recommends that 
Council adopts it; and

1.5 notes that a further report will be 
brought to Committee following a review of 
the Council’s Procedures for the 
assessment of complaints under the Code 
of Conduct.

8. Registers of Members' and 
Officers' Gifts and Hospitality and 
Register of Interests 

To review the registers of Members’ and 
Officers’ gifts and hospitality and register of 
interests. The registers will be available for 
inspection from 6.30p.m. onwards, so that 
Members can have the opportunity to 
review them either before or at the 
meeting.

9. Any Other Business Which in the opinion of the Chairman is of 
sufficient urgency as to warrant 
consideration.



5

10. Items Involving the Disclosure of 
Exempt Information 

The Committee is invited to pass the 
following resolution:

That under Section 100A(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the press and public 
be excluded from the meeting for the 
following items of business on the grounds 
that they involve the likely disclosure of 
information as defined in Schedule 12A of 
the said Act.

PART II
(ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION IN PRIVATE)

Exempt – not for publication because the item contains information relating to any
individual and also relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person –

categories 1 and 3.

11. Minutes (Exempt Items) 
Page(s): 47 - 48

Of the meeting held on 26th June 2019 to 
be approved and signed.

12. Reports of the Local Government 
Ombudsman 
Page(s): 49 - 54
Ward(s): All Wards
Contact Officer: Rich Morris, 

Corporate Policy 
and Strategy 
Officer
Tel: 01905 
722502

To advise the Committee of an upheld 
complaint by the Local Government and 
Social Care Ombudsman.



This page is intentionally left blank



STANDARDS COMMITTEE

26th June 2019

Present: Councillor Matthew Lamb in the Chair

Councillors Barnes, Berry, Griffiths, Roberts 
(Vice-Chairman), Stanley

Also in Attendance:
Mr Richard Manser, Warndon Parish Council
Mrs Dawn Merriman Warndon Parish 
Council 
Mr Alan Tidy, St. Peter’s Parish Council
Mr Ray Needham JP, Co-opted Member

Apologies: Mr Roger Knight, St. Peter’s Parish Council

Officers: Sian Stroud, Deputy Director – 
Governance and Monitoring Officer

1 Appointment of Substitutes 

Councillor Berry for Councillor Hodges; Councillor Griffiths for Councillor Mitchell. 
Apologies were received from Mr Roger Knight. 

2 Declarations of Interest 

None.

3 Public Participation 

None.

4 Minutes 

With reference to minute 24 (Reporting Back on Outside Bodies), Officers advised 
that representatives would be sent a reminder about the reporting back process 
towards the end of the Municipal Year.

With reference to minute 25 (Complaints Made Under the Code of Conduct), the 
recommendation to amend the Code had been agreed by Council at its meeting on 
26th March 2019.

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 13th March 2019 be 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

5 Annual Report of the Standards Committee 2018/19 

The Committee considered the draft Annual Report of the Standards Committee 
for the Municipal Year 2018/19. The Monitoring Officer highlighted some of the 
main points and the Chairman also commented.

Page 1 Agenda Item 4



26th June 2019 2

The Committee were advised that County Monitoring Officers will shortly begin 
work to address the best practice recommendations from the Review published by 
the Committee on Standards in Public Life, with a view to bringing a revised 
common county-wide Code of Conduct for councils to consider adopting later this 
year. There will be training for all Members on the Code when this has been done.

The Monitoring Officer was planning a piece of work over the next twelve months 
with a view to establishing tools and advice to support representatives on outside 
bodies.

The Chairman expressed thanks to his predecessor, Councillor Hodges, for her 
work over the last two years and also to former Councillor Gareth Jones for his 
support as Vice-Chairman.

The Report will be referred to the full Council for information.

RESOLVED: That the Committee approve the draft Annual Report for the 
Municipal Year 2018/19.

6 Complaints Made Under the Code of Conduct 

The Committee were advised by the Monitoring Officer that, since the last 
meeting, five complaints have been received. Before making a decision in relation 
to each complaint, the Monitoring Officer consulted with one of the Independent 
Persons from the pool appointed to consider complaints. A summary of the 
outcomes is as follows:

Complaint 1: informal resolution
Complaint 2: informal resolution
Complaints 3-5: no action – complaints did not fall within jurisdiction of the Code.

RESOLVED: That the Committee note the report.

7 Registers of Members' and Officers' Gifts and Hospitality and Register of 
Interests 

The Committee were given the opportunity to review the registers of Members’ 
and Officers’ gifts and hospitality and register of interests.

8 Any Other Business 

None.

9 Item Involving the Disclosure of Exempt Information 

RESOLVED: That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the 
following item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely 
disclosure of information as defined in Schedule 12A of the said Act.

Page 2



26th June 2019 3

10 Reports of the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman 

The Monitoring Officer advised the Committee of an upheld complaint by the Local 
Government Ombudsman.

Duration of the meeting: 7.00p.m. – 7.22p.m.

Chairman at the meeting on
13th November 2019

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



Report to: Standards Committee, 13th November 2019

Report of: Monitoring Officer

Subject: LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND SOCIAL CARE OMBUDSMAN ANNUAL 
REVIEW LETTER 2019

1. Recommendation

1.1 That the Standards Committee consider the Annual Review Letter (Appendix 
1) of the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LG&SCO) for the 
period covering 1st April 2018 to 31st March 2019 for information and 
comment.

2. Background

2.1 The LG&SCO produce an Annual Review Letter at the end of each year which 
includes a summary of complaints statistics for the Council. 

2.2 The data provided in the letter shows the complaints and enquiries the LG&SCO have 
recorded, along with the decisions made with regards to Worcester City Council. 

2.3 The data provided in the letter for complaints and enquiries does not always match 
the complaints data that the Council holds and reports. 

For example, the LG&SCO letter includes cases where they signpost the complainant 
back to the Council, but may never contact us and therefore are not recorded in our 
data. Cases are also logged under the time period the LG&SCO receive them or 
make their final decisions which may differ from the time period that the Council 
receives and records them.

2.4 The information included in the Annual Review Letter is also published in the Annual 
Review of Local Government Complaints report which reviews complaints in the last 
year in the local government sector. This report is published on the LG&SCO website.

2.5 Reports are made to each meeting of the Standards Committee on any formal 
reports received from the Ombudsman or when there has been an investigation 
which identified maladministration or a failure in a service. Details of any 
recommendations made and action taken by the Council are included in these 
reports.

3. Complaints against Worcester City Council 

3.1 The overall number of complaints and enquiries received by the Ombudsman about 
Worcester City Council has increased from 11 in 2017/18 to 13 in 2018/19. 

Page 5 Agenda Item 5

http://www.lgo.org.uk/


3.2 The number of cases where an investigation was carried out by the Ombudsman also 
increased from 8 in 2017/18 to 15 in 2018/19. However, the Upheld Rate decreased 
from 50% to 29%.

Detailed Investigations 
Year In 

complete 
/ invalid

Advice 
Given

Referred 
back for local 
resolution

Closed 
after initial 
enquiry

Upheld Not 
upheld

Upheld 
Rate 
(%)

Total

15/16 0 0 6 5 4 3 57 18
16/17 0 0 3 1 0 2 0 6
17/18 0 0 3 3 1 1 50 8
18/19 0 0 3 5 2 5 29 15
Note: The uphold rate shows how often the LG&SCO found evidence of fault. It is expressed as a 
percentage of the total number of detailed investigations completed.

3.3 Two upheld decision were received against the Council. However, the LG&SCO did 
not produce a report about either case. 

3.4 Upheld case 1: 
Category: Planning & Development 
Decision: Upheld: maladministration, no injustice.
Summary of decision: Mr X complains on behalf of Ms Y about the Council’s 
decision to grant planning permission for an extension to her neighbour’s home. The 
Council was at fault for approving the planning application before the published 
consultation deadline. However, this did not cause Ms Y any injustice as the Council 
had already considered the impact of the development on Ms Y’s property.

3.5 Upheld case 2:
Category: Planning & Development
Decision: Upheld: maladministration and injustice. 
Summary of decision: The Ombudsman found fault on Mr L’s complaint about the 
Council failing to notify him of a neighbour’s amended planning drawings. This 
caused no injustice. There was no fault on his complaint about it failing to take 
enforcement action or failing to consider the amendments’ impact on amenities. It 
was fault for the Council to wrongly upload his complaint letter containing personal 
details on to its online planning file. This caused injustice. The Council apologised, 
explained it was reviewing part of its website, and is looking at producing guidance 
about what to do when there is a breach.

The Ombudsman considered that the action the Council took remedied the injustice 
caused. This case is therefore included in the Annual Review Letter statistics as 
‘Satisfactory remedy provided by authority’.

3.6 In conclusion, the reduction in the percentage of complaints that are upheld by the 
LG&SCO demonstrates that the Council is performing relatively well. However, the 
increase in the total number of complaints received by the LG&SCO indicates that 
there are lessons to be learnt. We will consider our internal complaints management 
procedures to endeavour to resolve complaints at an earlier stage so that 
complainants do not feel that their case needs to be escalated to the LG&SCO. 

We continue to monitor and review the complaints we receive in order to improve 
our processes and implement appropriate mitigations to reduce future complaints.

Page 6



Ward(s): None
Contact Officer: Jo Payne, Corporate Policy and Strategy Officer, Email: 

Joanna.payne@worcester.gov.uk 
Background Papers: Complaints and Feedback Policy  

Page 7

mailto:Joanna.payne@worcester.gov.uk
http://www.worcester.gov.uk/documents/10499/4719020/Complaints-Policy.pdf/5e16b807-c23e-4ae0-b47f-04eb32314d66


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

24 July 2019 
 
By email 
 
David Blake 
Managing Director 
Worcester City Council 
 
 
Dear Mr Blake 
 
Annual Review letter 2019 
 
I write to you with our annual summary of statistics on the complaints made to the Local 

Government and Social Care Ombudsman about your authority for the year ending 31 

March 2019. The enclosed tables present the number of complaints and enquiries received 

about your authority, the decisions we made, and your authority’s compliance with 

recommendations during the period. I hope this information will prove helpful in assessing 

your authority’s performance in handling complaints.  

Complaint statistics 

As ever, I would stress that the number of complaints, taken alone, is not necessarily a 

reliable indicator of an authority’s performance. The volume of complaints should be 

considered alongside the uphold rate (how often we found fault when we investigated a 

complaint), and alongside statistics that indicate your authority’s willingness to accept fault 

and put things right when they go wrong. We also provide a figure for the number of cases 

where your authority provided a satisfactory remedy before the complaint reached us, and 

new statistics about your authority’s compliance with recommendations we have made; both 

of which offer a more comprehensive and insightful view of your authority’s approach to 

complaint handling.  

The new statistics on compliance are the result of a series of changes we have made to how 

we make and monitor our recommendations to remedy the fault we find. Our 

recommendations are specific and often include a time-frame for completion, allowing us to 

follow up with authorities and seek evidence that recommendations have been implemented. 

These changes mean we can provide these new statistics about your authority’s compliance 

with our recommendations.  

I want to emphasise the statistics in this letter reflect the data we hold and may not 

necessarily align with the data your authority holds. For example, our numbers include 

Page 9 Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1



enquiries from people we signpost back to your authority, some of whom may never contact 

you. 

In line with usual practice, we are publishing our annual data for all authorities on our 

website, alongside our annual review of local government complaints. For the first time, this 

includes data on authorities’ compliance with our recommendations. This collated data 

further aids the scrutiny of local services and we encourage you to share learning from the 

report, which highlights key cases we have investigated during the year. 

New interactive data map 

In recent years we have been taking steps to move away from a simplistic focus on 

complaint volumes and instead focus on the lessons learned and the wider improvements 

we can achieve through our recommendations to improve services for the many. Our 

ambition is outlined in our corporate strategy 2018-21 and commits us to publishing the 

outcomes of our investigations and the occasions our recommendations result in 

improvements for local services.   

The result of this work is the launch of an interactive map of council performance on our 

website later this month. Your Council’s Performance shows annual performance data for all 

councils in England, with links to our published decision statements, public interest reports, 

annual letters and information about service improvements that have been agreed by each 

council. It also highlights those instances where your authority offered a suitable remedy to 

resolve a complaint before the matter came to us, and your authority’s compliance with the 

recommendations we have made to remedy complaints. 

The intention of this new tool is to place a focus on your authority’s compliance with 

investigations. It is a useful snapshot of the service improvement recommendations your 

authority has agreed to. It also highlights the wider outcomes of our investigations to the 

public, advocacy and advice organisations, and others who have a role in holding local 

councils to account.   

I hope you, and colleagues, find the map a useful addition to the data we publish. We are 

the first UK public sector ombudsman scheme to provide compliance data in such a way and 

believe the launch of this innovative work will lead to improved scrutiny of councils as well as 

providing increased recognition to the improvements councils have agreed to make following 

our interventions. 

Complaint handling training 

We have a well-established and successful training programme supporting local authorities 

and independent care providers to help improve local complaint handling. In 2018-19 we 

delivered 71 courses, training more than 900 people, including our first ‘open courses’ in 

Effective Complaint Handling for local authorities. Due to their popularity we are running six 

more open courses for local authorities in 2019-20, in York, Manchester, Coventry and 

London. To find out more visit www.lgo.org.uk/training. 

Finally, I am conscious of the resource pressures that many authorities are working within, 

and which are often the context for the problems that we investigate. In response to that 

situation we have published a significant piece of research this year looking at some of the 

Page 10

https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/about-us/our-aims/our-mission-and-objectives
https://www.lgo.org.uk/your-councils-performance
http://www.lgo.org.uk/training


common issues we are finding as a result of change and budget constraints. Called, Under 

Pressure, this report provides a contribution to the debate about how local government can 

navigate the unprecedented changes affecting the sector. I commend this to you, along with 

our revised guidance on Good Administrative Practice. I hope that together these are a 

timely reminder of the value of getting the basics right at a time of great change.  

 

Yours sincerely, 

 

Michael King 

Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman 

Chair, Commission for Local Administration in England 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 11

https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/news/2018/dec/councils-mustn-t-throw-out-the-rule-book-in-the-face-of-pressure-says-ombudsman
https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/news/2018/dec/councils-mustn-t-throw-out-the-rule-book-in-the-face-of-pressure-says-ombudsman
https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/reports/guidance-notes/principles-of-good-administrative-practice


Local Authority Report: Worcester City Council 

For the Period Ending: 31/03/2019  

 

For further information on how to interpret our statistics, please visit our website  

 
Complaints and enquiries received  
 

Adult Care 
Services 

Benefits and 
Tax 

Corporate 
and Other 
Services 

Education 
and 

Children’s 
Services 

Environment 
Services 

Highways 
and 

Transport 
Housing 

Planning and 
Development 

Other Total 

0 2 2 0 4 0 1 4 0 13 

 

Decisions made 
 

Detailed Investigations  

Incomplete or 
Invalid 

Advice 
Given 

Referred 
back for 

Local 
Resolution 

Closed After 
Initial 

Enquiries 
Not Upheld Upheld Uphold Rate (%) Total 

0 0 3 5 5 2 29 15 

Note: The uphold rate shows how often we found evidence of fault. It is expressed as a percentage of the total number of detailed investigations we completed. 

 

Satisfactory remedy provided by authority  

Upheld cases where the authority had provided a satisfactory 
remedy before the complaint reached the Ombudsman 

% of upheld 
cases 

1 50 

Note: These are the cases in which we decided that, while the authority did get things wrong, it offered a 
satisfactory way to resolve it before the complaint came to us. 

P
age 12

https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/reports/annual-review-reports/interpreting-local-authority-statistics


Compliance with Ombudsman recommendations  

Complaints where compliance 
with the recommended remedy 
was recorded during the year* 

Complaints where the 
authority complied with 

our recommendations on-
time  

 

Complaints where the authority 
complied with our 

recommendations late  
 

Complaints where the 
authority has not 
complied with our 
recommendations  

 

 
 
 

 0
0 0 0 Number 

0%  - Compliance rate** 

Notes:  
* This is the number of complaints where we have recorded a response (or failure to respond) to our recommendation for a remedy during the reporting year. This includes complaints that may have been 
decided in the preceding year but where the data for compliance falls within the current reporting year. 
** The compliance rate is based on the number of complaints where the authority has provided evidence of their compliance with our recommendations to remedy a fault. This includes instances where an 
authority has accepted and implemented our recommendation but provided late evidence of that. 
 

 P
age 13



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Standards Committee, 13th November 2019

Report of: Monitoring Officer

Subject: COMPLAINTS MADE UNDER THE MEMBERS’ CODE OF CONDUCT

1. Recommendation

1.1 That the report be noted.

2. Purpose of Report

2.1 To advise the Committee of any complaints made under the Members’ Code of 
Conduct.

3. Background

3.1 The Council’s Procedure adopted by the Council in March 2014 provides that a 
complaint will initially be considered by the Monitoring Officer and an Independent 
Person once the Monitoring Officer is in receipt of all relevant information to enable 
an initial assessment of the complaint to take place.  After consulting the 
Independent Person, the Monitoring Officer will decide either to take no action on the 
allegation, to resolve the complaint informally or to arrange an investigation.

4. Complaints

4.1 Since the last meeting of the Committee, 3 complaints have been received. One of 
those complaints related to 4 councillors. Before making a decision in relation to 
each complaint, the Monitoring Officer consulted with one of the Independent 
Persons from the pool appointed to consider complaints. The second and third 
complaint were considered to fall outside of the remit of the Code and the first 
complaint was considered amenable to informal resolution. Therefore a summary of 
the outcomes is as follows:

Complaint 1: informal resolution
Complaint 2 (related to 4 councillors): no action
Complaint 3: no action

Ward(s): All
Contact Officer: Sian Stroud, Monitoring Officer. Tel:  01905 722019
Background Papers: None

Page 15 Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Standards Committee, 13th November 2019 

Report of: Monitoring Officer

Subject: RESPONSE TO THE NOLAN REVIEW AND UPDATED PAN-
WORCESTERSHIRE CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS

1. Recommendation

That the Committee:

1.1 notes the recommendations of the report published by the National 
Committee on Standards in Public Life on ethical standards in local 
government, as set out in Appendix 1;

1.2 notes the discussions which have taken place between the Monitoring 
Officers of the principal authorities within Worcestershire in response to 
those recommendations;

1.3 endorses the principle of a pan-Worcestershire Code of Conduct for 
members; 

1.4 endorses the draft Code of Conduct set out at Appendix 2 and recommends 
that Council adopts it; and

1.5 notes that a further report will be brought to Committee following a review 
of the Council’s Procedures for the assessment of complaints under the 
Code of Conduct.

2. Background

2.1 The Committee will recall from previous reports that the National Committee on 
Standards and Public Life (often called the "Nolan Committee") invited responses to 
its consultation to inform its review of local government ethical standards, which 
took place in 2018. 

2.2 The Nolan Committee has now completed its assessment of whether the existing 
structures, processes and practices are conducive to high standards of conduct in 
local government. Its report, issued in January this year, makes recommendations 
for improvement, to government in relation to the legislative regime, and best 
practice recommendations to local government to consider. These recommendations 
are set out in Appendix 1.

2.3 Key recommendations for Government to consider are that: local authorities should 
regain the power to suspend members (for up to 6 months) as a sanction for 
breaching the Code; the criminal offence regime in relation to Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests should be abolished but the classes of registrable interests broadened; a 

Page 17 Agenda Item 7



register of gifts and hospitality be re-established; and independent members of 
standards committees should be allowed to vote. 

2.4 Local government will have to await the Government's response to legislative 
recommendations. In the meantime it is within the Council’s power to review and act 
on the Best Practice recommendations. This includes reviewing the Members Code of 
Conduct and ensuring it and all related procedures and processes are fit for purpose.

2.5 The Committee will be aware that the local authorities in Worcestershire aim to take 
a shared approach to standards and ethics matters. This has led to the same 
Members Code of Conduct being adopted for all Worcestershire councils (often 
referred to the “pan-Worcestershire Code”). The Monitoring Officers for those local 
authorities regularly convene to consider common questions of standards and ethics 
and have reviewed the Best Practice recommendations as well as the current 
Members Code of Conduct.

3. Best practice recommendations 

3.1 Set out below are the best practice recommendations of the Nolan Committee’s 
report alongside the Monitoring Officer’s commentary on how these are currently 
being addressed by the ethical standards arrangements in place at Worcester City 
Council. (References to the “Code” are to the pan-Worcestershire Code of Conduct 
for Members, and references to the “Procedures” are to Worcester City Council’s 
local procedures for the assessment and management of complaints under the 
Code.)

BP1 – the Code of Conduct should include prohibitions on bullying and 
harassment, with definitions and examples. 

The current Code prohibits bullying but gives no definitions or examples. A revised 
version of the Code, proposed under this report, would address this. 

BP2 – the Code should require councillors to comply with formal standards 
investigations, and prohibit trivial or malicious allegations by councillors. 

The Council has very few formal investigations. The best way of dealing with trivial 
or malicious allegations is considered to be through robust filtering right at the start 
of the process, and avoiding tit-for-tat complaints. The consensus amongst the 
Worcestershire Monitoring Officers group is that a simple obligation to co-operate 
with any standards investigations will suffice.

BP3 – the Code should be reviewed each year and seek where possible the 
views of the public and neighbouring authorities. 

A full annual review is considered to be disproportionate but any potential 
amendments or learning points could be considered as part of the Committee’s 
annual report. 

The City Council already works with its neighbours on ethical standards matters, 
applying a pan-Worcestershire Code. 

BP4 – the Code should be readily accessible to the public. 

Page 18



It already is – being available on the Council’s website and in the Constitution. 

BP5 – In line with proposed new legislation, authorities should update a 
Gifts and Hospitality Register at least quarterly. 

Although a Register is not yet a legal requirement, it would probably be expected by 
the public and so the proposal from the Monitoring Officers group is that it should be 
re-introduced ahead of any legislation, as an appendix to the Members Code of 
Conduct. In discussion, the Monitoring Officers considered that £15 was a suitable 
value threshold for such registration to meet the purpose of transparency but not 
worry about trivial items.

BP6 – authorities should publish a clear public interests test for filtering of 
allegations. 

The Council needs to ensure that its Procedures make the public interests test clear.

BP7 – authorities should have access to at least 2 Independent Persons. 

This is already in place with the Worcestershire panel arrangements with 
Independent Persons.

BP8 – Independent Persons should be consulted on whether a complaint 
should be investigated. 

The Procedure already allows for involvement of IP at early filtering stage. 

BP9 – Formal decisions after investigation should be published on website. 

Investigations are rare so this has question has not really arisen. However the 
circumstances in which information will be made needs to be made clear in the 
Procedures. 

BP10 – authorities should have guidance on website on how to complain, 
process and timescales. 

The Council’s website makes it clear on how to complain and provide a web-form 
with dedicated email address. The Procedures set out some information on 
timescales but these could be reviewed and clarified. 

BP11 – 12 not relevant 

BP13 – there should be procedures for managing conflict of interests for 
MO. 

The Council’s Procedures need to make this clear.

BP14 – separate bodies set up or owned by the Council should come within 
annual governance statement, and be Nolan-transparent. 

The Council is not currently an owner of any separate bodies eg companies. The 
Council’s joint committee arrangements are already covered by the annual 
governance statement.

Page 19



BP15 – senior officers should meet group leaders regularly to discuss 
standards issues. 

The current arrangements do not include this mechanism; to date it has not been 
identified as necessary for the City Council to do this because standards matters 
have been effectively managed through the role of the Standards Committee and the 
Monitoring Officer. However this could be considered as part of the Council’s next 
general governance review.

4. Revisions to the Members Code of Conduct

4.1 The Members Code of Conduct has been reviewed by the Worcestershire Monitoring 
Officers group, in light of the best practice recommendations and based on 
experience on using the existing Code. There remained a consensus that a pan-
Worcestershire Code remains the best approach for the benefit of the public, 
members, and good governance. 

4.2 The Monitoring Officers considered that the current Code was fit for purpose, but 
would benefit from a few relatively small amendments flowing from some of the 
Nolan Best Practice (BP) recommendations relevant to the Code.

4.3 The revised draft is attached here at Appendix 2, showing the proposed changes 
tracked. This draft is currently being considered for approval by all standards and 
ethics committees in the Worcestershire local authorities.

4.4 It would be open to the parish councils in Worcestershire to also adopt the revised 
draft.

5. Procedures for the Assessment of Complaints

5.1 The Council has adopted a set of Procedures for the assessments of complaints made 
under the Members Code of Conduct. These are attached at Appendix 3. The 
Standards Committee last reviewed and approved these Procedures in 2014. Unlike 
the Code of Conduct, these Procedures can be agreed at local level by the Standards 
Committee without referral to full Council or consultation with the other 
Worcestershire local authorities.

5.2 In response to the Nolan Committee’s best practice recommendations and based on 
experience of using the Procedures, the Monitoring Officer proposes to review those 
Procedures and report to a future meeting of the Standards Committee on any 
potential changes to the Procedures which may be beneficial. 

Ward(s): All
Contact Officer: Sian Stroud, Monitoring Officer. Tel:  01905 722019
Background Papers: None

Appendix 1: recommendations of the National Committee on Standards and 
Public Life January 2019
Appendix 2: revised draft Code of Conduct for Members
Appendix 3: Procedures for the assessment and investigation of complaints 
January 2014

Page 20



Page 21 Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



1 

 

WORCESTER CITY COUNCIL 
 

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS 
 

Part 1 

 
General provisions 

Introduction and interpretation 

 
1.  (1) This Code applies to you as a member or co-opted member of Worcester City 

Council ('the authority'). 
 
(2) You should read this Code together with the Seven Ten Principles of Public 
Life (also known as the Nolan Principles) set out at Appendix 1, and the Council's 
Member/Officer Relations Protocol as updated from time to time. 

 
(3)  It is your responsibility to comply with the provisions of this Code. 
 
(4) In this Code: 

 
"meeting" means any meeting of: 
 

a) the authority; 
b) any of the authority's committees, sub-committees, joint committees, joint sub-

committees, or area committees; 
c) an external body upon which the member sits as a representative of the authority. 

 
“Monitoring Officer” means the Monitoring Officer for the authority; 
 
“bullying and harassment” includes: 
 

Oppressive behaviour or the abuse of power, which makes the recipient feel 
threatened, humiliated or vulnerable, and which may undermine his/her self-
confidence and cause him/her to suffer stress. 

 
Examples are set out at Appendix 3 to this Code. 

Scope 

 
2.  (1) This Code applies to you as a Member of this authority when you act in 
 your role as a Member or as a representative of the authority in the 
 circumstances described in paragraph 2 (b) below. 
 

(2) Where you act as a representative of the authority: 
 

(a) on another relevant authority, you must, when acting for that other authority, 
comply with that other authority's code of conduct; or 

 

Page 27 Agenda Item 7
Appendix 2



2 

 

(b) on any other body, you must, when acting for that other body, comply with the 
authority's code of conduct, except and insofar as it conflicts with any other lawful 
obligations to which that other body may be subject. 

General obligations 

 
3. (1)  You must treat others with respect in accordance with the Nolan Principles. 
 
    (2)  You must co-operate with any standards investigations 
 

(3) You must not: 
 

(a) do anything which may cause your authority to breach any of the equality 
enactments; 

 
(b) bully or harass any person; 

 
(c)  intimidate or attempt to intimidate any person who is or is likely to be: 
 

i. a complainant, 
ii. a witness, or 
iii. involved in the administration of any investigation or proceedings in relation to 

an allegation that a member (including yourself) has failed to comply with the 
authority's Code of Conduct;  

 
(d) do anything which compromises or is likely to compromise the impartiality of 

those who work for, or on behalf of, the authority.   
 
4. You must not: 
 

(a) do anything that is likely to cause your authority to breach Data Protection law; 
  

(a)(b) disclose information given to you in confidence by anyone, or information 
acquired by you which you believe, or ought reasonably to be aware, is of a 
confidential nature, except where: 

 
i. you have the consent of a person authorised to give it; 
ii. you are required by law to do so; 
iii. the disclosure is made to a third party for the purpose of obtaining 

professional advice provided that the third party agrees not to disclose the 
information to any other person; or 

iv. the disclosure is: 
 

(aa) reasonable and in the public interest; and 
(bb) made in good faith and in compliance with the reasonable requirements 
of the authority; or 

 
(b)(c) prevent another person from gaining access to information to which that 

person is entitled by law. 
 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.27 cm, 
No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.12 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.9 cm

Page 28



3 

 

5. You must not conduct yourself in a manner which could reasonably be regarded as 
bringing your office or authority into disrepute. 
 
6. You: 
  

a) must not use or attempt to use your position as a Member improperly to confer on 
or secure for yourself or any other person, an advantage or disadvantage; and 

 
b) must, when using or authorising the use by others of the resources of, or under 

the control of, the authority: 
 

i. act in accordance with the authority's reasonable requirements including in 
relation to the use of authority stationery and official logos and branding; 

ii. ensure that such resources are not used improperly for political purposes 
(including party political purposes); and 

 
(c)(d) must have regard to any applicable Local Authority Code of Publicity.  

 
7. You must: 
 

a) when reaching decisions on any matter have regard to any relevant advice 
provided to you by the authority’s officers and in particular by the authority's 
Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Officer; and  

b) give reasons for all decisions in accordance with any statutory requirements and 
any reasonable additional requirements imposed by the authority. 

 
8. You must not place yourself under any financial or other obligation to outside 
individuals or organisations that might seek to influence you in the performance of your 
official duties and must comply with the authority’s guidance on gifts and hospitality 
(attached at Appendix 4).  
 
Part 2 

 
Interests 

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (“DPI”) 

 
9. (1) You will have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (“DPI”) under this Code if:- 
   

a) such interest meets the definition prescribed by the DPI Regulations as amended 
from time to time and set out in Appendix 2 to this Code; and 

 
b) it is either an interest of yourself or it is an interest of :- 

i. your spouse or civil partner;  
ii. a person with whom you are living as husband and wife: or 
iii. a person with whom you are living as if you were civil partners; 

 
and you are aware that the other person has the interest. 

Page 29



4 

 

Registration of DPIs 

 
10. (1) You must within 28 days of becoming a Member of the authority or being re-
elected notify the Monitoring Officer in writing of any DPI which you hold at the time 
notification is given.  
 
(2) You must within 28 days of becoming aware of any new DPI, or changes to existing 
DPIs, notify the Monitoring Officer in writing. 

Other Disclosable Interests 

 
11. (1) You will have a Disclosable Interest in any matter if you are aware that you or a 
member of your family or person or organisation with whom you are associated have:- 
 

a) a pecuniary interest in the matter under discussion which is not de minimis; or 
b) a close connection with the matter under discussion. 

 
(2) If you are a member of another local authority, or public body, or you have been 
appointed as the authority’s representative on an outside body, you do not have a 
Disclosable Interest unless a member of the public knowing the circumstances would 
reasonably regard membership of the body concerned as being likely to prejudice your 
judgment of what is in the public interest. 

Disclosure of Interests 

 
12. (1) Formal Meetings 
 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI)s: formal meetings 

 
If you are present at a meeting and you have a DPI then you must: 
 

(a)  disclose the nature and existence of the interest;  
 

(b)  leave the meeting (including the meeting room and public gallery) and take no 
part in the discussion;  and 

 
(c) if the interest has not already been recorded notify the Monitoring Officer of the 

interest within 28 days beginning with the date of the meeting. 
 

Other Disclosable Interests 

If you are present at a meeting and you have an Other Disclosable Interest, then you 
must: 
  

a) disclose the nature and existence of the interest; and 
 

b) if the interest: 
i. affects your pecuniary interests or relates to the determination of a planning or 

regulatory matter; and 

Page 30



5 

 

ii. is one which a member of the public knowing the circumstances would 
reasonably regard as being likely to prejudice your judgment of what is in the 
public interest 

 
then you must leave the meeting (including the meeting room and public gallery) and 
take no part in the discussion.  
 
 
 
 
 
(2) DPIs: iInformal meetings and correspondence 
 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) 

If you have a DPI in the matter you must not participate in informal meetings,  or 
briefings orand site visits and must disclose the DPI in any correspondence with the 
Council. 
 
Other Disclosable Interest (ODI) 
If you have an ODI in the matter, then you must disclose the existence and nature of that 
interest at informal meetings, briefings or site visits and must disclose the ODI in any 
correspondence with the authority. 
 
If the ODI is such that you would be required to leave a formal meeting as above, then 
you must not participate in the informal meeting. 
 
(3) Single Member Decisions  

 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (ODI) 
If when participating in single member decision making you have a DPI in affecting the 
matter being decided then you mustay take no steps in relation to the decision other 
than asking for the matter to be decided in some other manner. 
 
Other Disclosable Interest (ODI) 
If you have an ODI in the matter being decided, then you must disclose the existence 
and nature and record it on the record of decision. 
 
If the ODI is such that you would be required to leave a formal meeting as set out above, 
then you must take no steps in relation to the decision other than asking for the matter to 
be decided in some other manner.  
 
(4) Other Disclosable Interests 

If you are present at a meeting and you have an Other Disclosable Interest then you 
must: 
  
a) disclose the nature and existence of the interest; and 
 
b) if the interest: 

i. affects your pecuniary interests or relates to the determination of a planning or 
regulatory matter; and 

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Normal,  No bullets or
numbering

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0 cm

Formatted: Normal,  No bullets or
numbering

Page 31



6 

 

ii. is one which a member of the public knowing the circumstances would 
reasonably regard as being likely to prejudice your judgment of what is in the public 
interest 
 
then you must leave the meeting (including the meeting room and public gallery) and 
take no part in the discussion.  
 
(5) Dispensations 

You may take part in the discussion of and vote on a matter in which you have been 
granted a dispensation.  

Sensitive information 

 
13. (1) An interest will be a sensitive interest if the 2 following conditions apply: 
 

a) that you have an interest (whether or not a DPI); and 
b) the nature of the interest is such that you and the Monitoring Officer consider that 

disclosure of the details of the interest could lead to you or a person connected to 
you being subject to violence or intimidation. 

 
(2) Where it is decided that an interest is a “sensitive interest” it will be excluded from 
published versions of the register. The Monitoring Officer may state on the register that 
the member has an interest the details of which are excluded under this section. 
 
(3) Where the sensitive interest is a DPI the usual rules relating to disclosure will apply 
save that the member will only be required to disclose that they hold a DPI in the matter 
concerned. 
 

 APPENDIX 1  

The Ten Seven Principles of Public Life 

 
(a) selflessness  
(b) integrity  
(c) objectivity  
(d) accountability  
(e) openness  
(f) honesty 
(g) leadership. 
 
APPENDIX 2 
 
The Localism Act Definition of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests Regulations 
 
APPENDIX 3 (NEW) 
 
Examples of bullying and harassment 
 
APPENDIX 4 (NEW) 
 
Gifts and Hospitality 

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Underline

Page 32



7 

 

 
 
  

Page 33



8 

 

Appendix 1 

 
MEMBERS CODE OF CONDUCT 

 
THE TEN GENERAL PRINCIPLES OF PUBLIC LIFE 

 
Selflessness – Members should serve only the public interest and should never 

improperly confer an advantage or disadvantage on any person. 
 
Honesty and Integrity – Members should not place themselves in situations where their 

honesty and integrity may be questioned, should not behave improperly, and should on 
all occasions avoid the appearance of such behaviour. 
 
Objectivity – Members should make decisions on merit, including when making 

appointments, awarding contracts, or recommending individuals for rewards or benefits. 
 
Accountability – Members should be accountable to the public for their actions and the 

manner in which they carry out their responsibilities and should co-operate fully and 
honestly with any scrutiny appropriate to their particular office. 
 
Openness – Members should be as open as possible about their actions and those of 

their authority and should be prepared to give reasons for those actions. 
 
Personal judgement – Members may take account of the views of others, including 
their political groups, but should reach their own conclusions on the issues before them 
and act in accordance with those conclusions. 
 
Respect for others – Members should promote equality by not discriminating unlawfully 
against any person, and by treating people with respect, regardless of their race, age, 
religion, gender, sexual orientation or disability.  They should respect the impartiality and 
integrity of the authority’s statutory officers and its other employees. 
 
Duty to uphold the Law – Members should uphold the law and, on all occasions, act in 
accordance with the trust that the public is entitled to place in them. 
 
Stewardship – Members should do whatever they are able to do to ensure that their 
authorities use their resources prudently and in accordance with the law. 
 
Leadership – Members should promote and support these principles by leadership, and 

by example, and should act in a way that secures or preserves public confidence. 
 

  

Formatted: Font: Italic

Page 34



9 

 

Appendix 2 

 
 

S T A T U T O R Y  I N S T R U M E N T S  

2012 No. 1464 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT, ENGLAND 

The Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) 

Regulations 2012 
 

 

Made - - - - 6th June 2012 

Laid before Parliament 8th June 2012 

Coming into force - - 1st July 2012 

The Secretary of State, in exercise of the powers conferred by sections 30(3) and 235(2) of the Localism 

Act 2011(a1), makes the following Regulations. 

Citation, commencement and interpretation 

—(1) These Regulations may be cited as the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) 
Regulations 2012 and shall come into force on 1st July 2012. 

In these regulations— 

“the Act” means the Localism Act 2011; 

“body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest” means a firm in which the relevant person 

is a partner or a body corporate of which the relevant person is a director, or in the securities of which 

the relevant person has a beneficial interest; 

“director” includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and provident society; 

“land” excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which does not carry with it a 

right for the relevant person (alone or jointly with another) to occupy the land or to receive income; 

“M” means a member of a relevant authority; 

“member” includes a co-opted member; 

“relevant authority” means the authority of which M is a member; 

“relevant period” means the period of 12 months ending with the day on which M gives a notification 

for the purposes of section 30(1) or section 31(7), as the case may be, of the Act; 

“relevant person” means M or any other person referred to in section 30(3)(b) of the Act; 

“securities” means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective 

investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000(b2) and other 

securities of any description, other than money deposited with a building society. 

Specified pecuniary interests 

 The pecuniary interests which are specified for the purposes of Chapter 7 of Part 1 of the Act are the 
interests specified in the second column of the Schedule to these Regulations. 

                                                             
(a) 2011 c.20. 

(b) 2000 c. 8. 

Page 35



10 

 

 

Signed by authority of the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government 

 
 Grant Shapps 

 Minister of State 
6th June 2012 Department for Communities and Local Government 

 

 SCHEDULE Regulation 2 

Subject Prescribed description 

Employment, office, trade, profession or 

vacation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or 

vocation carried on for profit or gain. 

 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other 

financial benefit (other than from the relevant 

authority) made or provided within the relevant 
period in respect of any expenses incurred by M 

in carrying out duties as a member, or towards 
the election expenses of M. 

This includes any payment or financial benefit 

from a trade union within the meaning of the 

Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992(a3). 

 

Contracts Any contract which is made between the 

relevant person (or a body in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest) and the 

relevant authority— 

(a) under which goods or services are to be 

provided or works are to be executed; and 

(b) which has not been fully discharged. 

 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within 

the area of the relevant authority. 

 

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to 

occupy land in the area of the relevant authority 
for a month or longer. 

 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to M’s knowledge)— 

(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and 

(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant 

person has a beneficial interest. 

 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body 

where— 

(a) that body (to M’s knowledge) has a place of 

business or land in the area of the relevant 
authority; and 

(b) either— 

 

(i) the total nominal value of the securities 

                                                             
(a) 1992 c. 52. 

Page 36



11 

 

exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total 

issued share capital of that body; or 

 

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more 

than one class, the total nominal value of the 

shares of any one class in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest exceeds one 

hundredth of the total issued share capital of 

that class. 

 

EXPLANATORY NOTE 
(This note is not part of the Regulations) 

Section 30 of the Localism Act 2011 provides that a member or co-opted member of a relevant authority as 
defined in section 27(6) of the Localism Act 2011, on taking office and in the circumstances set out in 

section 31, must notify the authority’s monitoring officer of any disclosable pecuniary interest which that 

person has at the time of notification. These Regulations specify what is a pecuniary interest. Section 30(3) 
of the Act sets out the circumstances in which such an interest is a disclosable interest. 

A full impact assessment has not been produced for these Regulations as no impact on the private or 
voluntary sectors is foreseen. 

 
  

Page 37



12 

 

Appendix 3 

 
EXAMPLES OF BULLYING AND HARRASSMENT 

 

Bullying and harassment may include: 
 

 physical contact ranging from touching to assault  

 verbal and written comments through jokes, offensive language, personal 
comments about appearance, size, clothing etc  

 innuendo, gossip and letters etc. 

 malicious rumours and allegations, including fabricating complaints from clients 
and other members of staff. 

 open aggression, threats, shouting, abuse and obscenities, persistent negative 
attacks. 

 constant humiliation, criticism and ridicule, belittling efforts and undervaluing 
contribution 

 trolling behaviour. 
 
Harassment is unwanted conduct on the grounds of any protected characteristic as 
defined by the Equality Act 2010, political or Trade Union affiliation, or take the form of 
victimisation, that:  
 

 has the purpose of violating a person’s dignity or creating an intimidating, hostile, 
degrading, humiliating or offensive environment for that person; or 

 

 is reasonably considered by that person to have the effect of violating his/her 
dignity or of creating an intimidating, hostile, degrading, humiliating or offensive 
environment for him/her, even if this effect was not intended by the person 
responsible for the conduct. 

 
This is not exhaustive.  
 

  

Page 38



13 

 

 

 

Appendix 4 

 

GIFTS AND HOSPITALITY 

 

1. Minor gifts and hospitality are sometimes part of the normal courtesies of life: a 
resident may offer a modest gift as a token of appreciation and sometimes simple 
items such as diaries and pens are distributed as advertising matter.  In dealing 
with a matter in your ward you may be offered a cup of tea or light refreshments. 

 

2. As a guideline, any gift or hospitality with a value of £15 or more is highly unlikely 
to be viewed as a ‘token’.  You must consider whether it is appropriate to accept 
even token gifts, especially where you are dealing with regulatory or procurement 
matters when it would usually be inappropriate to receive any gift from involved 
parties.  In case of doubt you should consult the Monitoring Officer. 
 

3. Offers of hospitality, even if seemingly minor in nature, must be treated with 
particular caution as they can leave individuals and the Council open to 
allegations of impropriety.  The timing of offers of hospitality, for example in 
relation to the award of contracts, granting of applications or other decisions, 
should be considered equally to the generosity of the hospitality offered.  
Accepting hospitality must be justified in the public interest, for example when 
there is a genuine need to represent the Council. 
 

4. All offers and receipt of gifts and hospitality with a value of £15 or higher must be 
reported to the Monitoring Officer who will ensure it is recorded in the Council’s 
register of gifts and hospitality, which will be published. 

 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



Procedure for Assessment and Investigation of Complaints that  

Councillors have breached the Worcester City Council  

Code of Conduct for Members 

 

1. Introduction 

This procedure is only to be used for the assessment and investigation of 

complaints of alleged failures by councillors to comply with the Council’s Code of 

Conduct for Members.  

2. Making a complaint 

Complaints should be made in writing to the Monitoring Officer. 

3. Initial assessment of complaint  

On receipt of a complaint, the Monitoring Officer will notify the Subject Councillor 

that a complaint has been received (unless the Monitoring Officer considers that 

it would be contrary to the public interest or would prejudice the consideration of 

the complaint to do so). The Monitoring Officer will also notify the Chairman and 

the Vice Chairman of the Standards Committee that a complaint has been 

received. 

The Monitoring Officer will make an initial assessment of the complaint within 20 

working days of receipt of all relevant information to enable an initial 

assessment to be made. In making an initial assessment, the Monitoring Officer 

shall consult with an Independent Person. 

Having carried out an initial assessment of a complaint, the Monitoring Officer 

will decide on one of the following courses of action: 

- Decide to take no action 

- Decide that the Monitoring Officer shall resolve the complaint informally  

- Decide to refer the complaint for investigation 

4. Decision to take no action 

Where the Monitoring Officer decides to take no further action in respect of the 

complaint, the Complainant and the Subject Councillor shall be advised of that 

decision in writing. 

5. Decision to resolve complaint informally 

Where the Monitoring Officer decides to resolve the complaint informally, the 

Complainant and the Subject Councillor shall be advised of that decision in 

Page 41 Agenda Item 7
Appendix 3



writing. In deciding to resolve the complaint informally, the Monitoring Officer 

may pursue any of the following courses of action: 

- Provide further training and guidance to the Subject Councillor 

- Mediate between the Complainant and the Subject Councillor 

- Require the Subject Councillor to write a personal apology to the 

Complainant 

- Write an advisory letter to the councillor 

Where informal resolution does not resolve the complaint, the Monitoring Officer 

may, following consultation with the Independent Person, decide to refer the 

complaint for investigation. 

6. Decision to investigate complaint 

Where the Monitoring Officer decides to refer the complaint for investigation, the 

Complainant and the Subject Councillor shall be advised of that decision in 

writing. The Monitoring Officer shall also advise the Chairman of the Standards 

Committee that a complaint has been referred for investigation. 

Where the Monitoring Officer decides to refer the complaint for investigation, the 

Subject Councillor shall be provided with the details of an Independent Person 

who will provide guidance on the process for investigation of the compliant. The 

Independent Person shall be a different Independent Person to the one that the 

Monitoring Officer has previously consulted with. 

Within 14 days of deciding to refer the complaint for investigation, the 

Monitoring Officer shall appoint an Investigating Officer to investigate the 

complaint. The Investigating Officer may be an officer of the Council, an officer 

of another local authority, or an external person. 

7. Investigation of complaint 

The Investigating Officer shall be instructed to investigate the complaint and to 

report to the Monitoring Officer. The Investigating Officer shall carry out an 

investigation. The purpose of the investigation is to establish the facts of the 

case and to form a view on whether there has been a breach of the Members 

Code of Conduct. 

The Complainant and the Subject Councillor shall cooperate fully with the 

Investigating Officer, including attending any meetings or interviews and 

providing all relevant information and documents to the Investigating Officer. 

The Investigating Officer may pursue any of the following actions as part of the 

investigation: 

- Interviewing the Complainant 

Page 42



- Interviewing the Subject Councillor 

- Interviewing other relevant witnesses 

- Requesting copies of any documents relevant to the investigation 

The Investigating Officer shall produce a draft report of his findings and send a 

copy to the Monitoring Officer, the Complainant and the Subject Councillor. The 

Investigating Officer shall allow 14 days for comments on the draft report and 

shall take any comments into consideration when producing the final report. 

If during the course of the investigation, the Investigating Officer identifies other 

breaches of the Code of Conduct the Monitoring Officer shall be advised 

accordingly.  

The Investigating Officer shall endeavour to complete the investigation within 2 

months of appointment. 

The Investigating Officer shall send a copy of the final report to the Monitoring 

Officer. The report shall include copies of any statements or documents obtained 

during the course of the investigation. 

8. Post investigation procedures 

Where the Investigating Officer concludes that there has not been a breach of 

the Code of Conduct, the Monitoring Officer shall take no further action and the 

Complainant and the Subject Councillor shall be advised of that decision in 

writing. 

Where the Investigating Officer concludes that there has been a breach of the 

Code of Conduct, the Monitoring Officer shall refer the report to the Hearings 

Sub-Committee for consideration. 

9. Hearings Sub-Committee 

Where a Hearings Sub-Committee is required the procedure for the hearing set 

out in the Appendix to this procedure shall apply. 

The Hearings Sub-Committee shall have the power to decide whether or not to 

impose a sanction where there has been a finding of a breach of the Code of 

Conduct for Members. 

The Hearings Sub-committee may impose one or more of the following 

sanctions. 

- The Monitoring Officer to send a formal letter to the Subject Councillor. 

- The Subject Councillor to make a public apology at Full Council. In the 

event of an apology not being made, the Subject Councillor may be 

censured at a meeting of the Full Council. 

Page 43



- The Monitoring Officer to provide further training and guidance to the 

Subject Councillor. 

- The Subject Councillor to write a personal apology to the Complainant. 

- A recommendation to the relevant Group Leader that the Subject 

Councillor should not sit on a particular Committee (or sub-Committee or 

Working Group) for a period of time (N.B. The replacement of members of 

a particular Committee is a matter reserved to Full Council). 

Page 44



Appendix 

Hearings Sub-Committee procedure 

 

1. Terms of Reference 

The Hearings Sub-Committee is responsible for considering reports of an 

investigating Officer into complaints that there has been a breach of the 

Worcester City Council Code of Conduct. The hearing shall be conducted in 

private in accordance with this procedure. 

2. Membership 

A Hearings Sub-Committee shall consist of three City Councillors (wherever 

possible from different political groups). The Hearings Sub-Committee shall be 

advised by the Monitoring Officer, who will be accompanied by the Independent 

Person. The Independent Person will advise the Monitoring Officer. 

3. Procedure 

- The Chairman introduces the Sub-committee and any other persons 

present, including the Monitoring Officer, the Independent Person, the 

Investigating Officer and a Committee Officer. 

- The Subject Councillor introduces themselves and any person who is 

acting on his or her representative and any witnesses to be called on his 

or her behalf. 

- The Chairman shall explain the procedure that shall be followed. 

- The Investigating Officer is invited to present their report and to call any 

witnesses. 

- The Subject Councillor may ask questions of the Investigating Officer 

and/or any witnesses which are to be put through the Chairman. 

- The Members of the Sub-committee may ask questions of the 

Investigating Officer. 

- The Subject Councillor is invited to respond to the Investigating Officer’s 

report and to call any witnesses. 

- The Investigating Officer may ask questions of the Subject Councillor or 

any witnesses which are to be put through the Chairman. 

- The Members of the Sub-committee may ask questions of the Subject 

Councillor. 

- The Chairman may request advice from the Monitoring Officer. 

Page 45



- The Sub-committee shall adjourn to consider whether there has been a 

breach of the Members Code of Conduct. The Sub-committee may request 

the presence of the Committee Officer during their deliberations. 

- The Sub-committee shall reconvene to deliver its decision verbally. 

- If the Sub-committee decides that there has been a breach of the Code of 

Conduct then the Sub-committee shall consider whether a sanction should 

be imposed. 

- The Chairman shall invite representations from the Investigating Officer as 

to whether a sanction should be imposed.  

- The Chairman shall invite representations from the Subject Councillor as 

to whether a sanction should be imposed. 

- The Chairman shall ask the Monitoring Officer if they wish to express an 

opinion as to whether a sanction should be imposed. 

- The Sub-committee shall adjourn to consider whether to impose a 

sanction. The Sub-committee may request the presence of the Committee 

Officer during their deliberations . 

- The Sub-committee shall reconvene to deliver its decision in respect of a 

sanction verbally. 

- The Chairman will explain that written notice of the decision and the 

reasons for it shall be sent to all parties within 14 days of the date of the 

hearing. 

- The Chairman will formally close the hearing. 

 

 

Page 46



Document is Restricted

Page 47 Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 49 Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 51 Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes

	5 Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman Annual Review Letter 2019
	191113 LGO Annual Letter App.1

	6 Complaints Made Under the Members' Code of Conduct
	7 Response to the Nolan Review and Updated Pan-Worcestershire Code of Conduct for Members
	Appendix 1 - Nolan Report -summary of recommendations
	Appendix 2 - Draft Members Code of Conduct rev 2019-  track changes version
	Appendix 3 - Procedure for Assessment and Investigation of Standards Complaints 2014 FINAL 27 1 14

	11 Minutes (Exempt Items)
	12 Reports of the Local Government Ombudsman
	191113 Standards Upheld LGO complaint statement - Appendix 1 EXEMPT


